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Church Service at Christ Church Cathedral

Pictured above from left: Archdeacon 
James Palacious; Deputy Governor, 
Michael Lightbourne; Former Governor, 
James Smith; Governor, Wendy Craigg;  
former governors, William Allen and Julian 
Francis; Financial Secretary, John Rolle.

Art Exhibition – Central Bank’s Art 
Gallery

Bank’s Curator, Antonius Roberts, right, with 
Central Bank Governor, Wendy Craigg.

Pictured below: The Central Bank’s choir “Forty 
Voices”.

Cocktail Reception at Sapodilla Restaurant Official Opening Ceremony

Staff Members at the 40th Anniversary cocktail reception

Cake cutting by staff
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Directors of The Central Bank of The Bahamas

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Central Bank of The Bahamas (the 
“Bank”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2014, and the related 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and reserves and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the Central Bank of The Bahamas 
Act, 2000, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the prepa-
ration of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-
ance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s prepa-
ration and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effective-
ness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of account-
ing policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
the Central Bank of The Bahamas as of December 31, 2014 and its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the Central Bank of The Bahamas Act, 2000.

March 24, 2015

Nassau, Bahamas
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014											         
(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)	 										        
											         

	 Notes	 2014	 2013
ASSETS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT	 5		  10,991,951 		   12,114,128
						    
EXTERNAL ASSETS	 6	
	 Cash and deposits			   155,210,814 		   122,439,760
	 Trading securities	 7		  -		  4,517,248 
	 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed						    
		  by foreign governments	 7		   544,913,338 		   546,447,500 
	 International Monetary Fund:	 8				  
		  Bahamas reserve tranche			   9,069,925		  9,640,826
		  Special drawing rights - holdings			   78,473,884 		   58,579,218

					     787,667,961 		  741,624,552
								      
DOMESTIC ASSETS						    
	 Bahamas Development Bank bonds	 9		   4,055,697 		   4,055,697
	 Advances to Bahamas Government	 10		   135,235,783 		   135,162,931 
	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks	 11		   316,537,255 		   223,509,541	
 	 Loans to Bahamas Development Bank	 12		   4,207,035 		   4,611,514
	 Bridge Authority bonds	 13		   472,385 		   983,733
	 Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	 14		   638,434 		   638,434
	 Bahamas Government Treasury bills	 15		   119,657,414 		   186,585,946
	 Currency inventory			   7,097,251		  7,291,897
	 Retirement benefit asset	 29		   1,556,553 		   3,924,102	
	 Receivables and other assets			    16,756,010 		   11,812,662 	
 		
					     606,213,817 		   578,576,457 	
	
							     
TOTAL ASSETS		  $	1,404,873,729	 $	1,332,315,137 	
 	 						    
	
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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	 Notes	 2014	 2013		
	
								      
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND RESERVES						    
DEMAND LIABILITIES						    
	 Notes in circulation	 16		   354,148,708 		   332,695,121	
	 Coins in circulation			    21,301,243 		   19,988,492	
	 Deposits by commercial banks	 17		   607,745,338 		   572,209,100	
	 Deposits by Bahamas Government						    
		  and Bahamas Government agencies			    74,421,172 		   63,763,038	
	 Deposits by international agencies	 18		   255,443 		   434,461	
	 Accounts payable and other liabilities			    5,661,623 		   4,542,626	
	 Provision for Investment Currency Market			    5,914,733 		   4,537,716	
	 Health insurance subsidy benefit for retirees	 30		   2,841,282 		   2,470,101	
		
					     1,072,289,542		  1,000,640,655	
	 	
OTHER LIABILITIES						    
	 International Monetary Fund:						    
		  Special drawing rights - allocation	 8		   180,265,829 		   191,633,310	
		
EQUITY AND RESERVES						    
	 Authorized and fully paid capital	 19		   3,000,000 		   3,000,000	
	 Exchange equalization account 	 19		   7,975,948 		   2,167,901	
	 Contingency reserve			    750,000 		   750,000	
	 Other reserves			    10,389,415 		   10,389,415	
	 Building fund	 19		   10,680,403 		   6,980,403	
	 General reserve	 19		   119,522,592 		   116,753,453	
		
					     152,318,358 		  140,041,172

TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND RESERVES		  $	1,404,873,729 	 $	1,332,315,137	
		
											         
											         
The financial statements, as approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issuance on March 24, 2015, are 
signed on its behalf by:											         
											         
											         
											         
________________________________				    _____________________________			 
				  
Governor							       Director						   

	

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014											         
(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)	 										        
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014										        
	

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)	

	 Notes	 2014	 2013
										        
INCOME					   
	 Interest on foreign investments	 20		  15,840,316		  15,556,731
	 Interest on loans	 20		   993,322 		  916,580 
	 Interest on domestic investments	 20		  13,619,985 		   10,149,073 
	 Unrealized exchange gain/(loss)	 20		   5,808,047 		   (458,818)
	 Realized exchange loss	 20		   (144,941)		   	 -   
	 Unrealized loss on trading securities	 7, 20		   	 - 	  	 (383,985)
	 Realized trading gain	 20		   152,320 		   27,734 
	 Interest expense	 20		   (158,337)		   (161,012)
	 Other income	 20		   5,448,934 		   1,258,162 
							     
Total income			   41,559,646 		   26,904,465 
							     
EXPENSES					   
	 Staff costs	 21		   18,268,988 		   10,221,680 
	 General and administrative	 21		   6,813,451 		   6,829,786 
	 Depreciation	 5		   1,633,294 		   1,682,219 
							     
Total expenses			   26,715,733 		   18,733,685 
							     
NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR		  $	 14,843,913 	 $	 8,170,780
							     
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME					   
				    	
	 Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit pension plan	 29		   (2,296,711)		   1,064,680 
	 Actuarial loss on group insurance subsidy	 30		   (270,016)		   (3,205)
							     
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income			    (2,566,727)		   1,061,475 
							     
NET COMPREHENSIVE INCOME		  $	 12,277,186 	 $	 9,232,255 
										        
										        
										        

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY AND RESERVES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014										        
	

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)	

			   Authorized	 Exchange 							     
			   and Fully 	 Equalization	 Contingency	 Other	 Building	 General
			   Paid Capital 	 Account 	 Reserve	 Reserves	 Fund	 Reserve	 Total
											         
				  

Balance at 
	 December 31, 2012	 3,000,000	 2,626,719	 750,000	 10,389,415	 6,980,403	 107,062,380	 130,808,917
										        
	 Transfer of unrealized 
	 exchange loss	 -   	 (458,818)	  -	  - 	  - 	 458,818 	  -   

									       

Net comprehensive 
	 income	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 9,232,255 	  9,232,255 

										        
	 Balance at 
	 December 31, 2013	 3,000,000 	 2,167,901 	 750,000 	 10,389,415 	 6,980,403 	 116,753,453	 140,041,172

										        
	 Transfer of unrealized 
		  exchange gain	 -   	 5,808,047 	  - 	  -  	  -  	  (5,808,047)	  -   

										        
	 Transfer from General 
	 Reserve to Building 
	 Fund	  -	  -	  -	  -   	 3,700,000 	  (3,700,000)	  -   

										        
	 Net comprehensive 
	 income	  -	 -	  -	  -   	  -	  12,277,186	  12,277,186 

											        
Balance at 
	 December 31, 2014	 $	 3,000,000	 $	 7,975,948	 $	 750,000	 $	10,389,415	 $	 10,680,403	 $	119,522,592	 $	152,318,358 
											        
							     

																              
		

																              
								      

																              
		

															             
	

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.				  
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014										        
	

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)	

	 Notes	 2014	 2013
									       

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:						    
	 Net comprehensive income for the year			    12,277,186 		   9,232,255 
	 Adjustments for non-cash items:						    
		  Discount earned on marketable securities - net	 7		   (1,103,598)		   (1,116,362)
		  Realized gain on sale of trading securities	 20		  (152,320)		   (27,734)
		  Unrealized loss on trading securities	 7		   	 -	  	 383,985 
		  Depreciation	 5		  1,633,294 		  1,682,219 
		  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net			   29,559		  250,759 
		  Interest income			    (29,405,804)		  (25,541,649)
		  Interest expense			   158,337 		  161,012 
			   Net cash used in operating activities before						    
		    	changes in operating assets and liabilities			   (16,563,346)		  (14,975,515)
		  Decrease/(Increase) in operating assets:						    
		  Currency inventory			   194,646		  741,616 
		  International Monetary Fund - net SDRs	 8		  (5,694,429)		  573,893 
		  Retirement benefit asset	 29		   2,367,549 		  (8,250,053)
		  Receivables and other assets			   (6,054,874)		  115,982 
		  (Decrease)/Increase in operating liabilities:						    
		  Notes in circulation	 16		  21,453,587 		  7,800,226 
		  Coins in circulation			   1,312,751 		   890,731 
		  Deposits by commercial banks	 17		  35,536,238 		   17,006,533 
		  Deposits by Bahamas Government and						    
			   Bahamas Government agencies			   10,658,134 	 	  38,868,446 
		  Deposits by international agencies	 18		  (179,018)		   62,947 
      	Provision for Investment Currency Market			   1,377,017		   971,006 
     	 Health insurance subsidy benefit for retirees	 30		  371,181		   96,466 
		  Accounts payable and other liabilities			   1,118,997		  1,596,742 
								        	
	 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities			   45,898,433		  45,499,020
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	 Notes	 2014	 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:						    
				  
	 Purchase of HTM marketable securities - net	 7		   (85,386,719)		   (9,817,187)
	 Proceeds from maturities of HTM marketable securities	 7		   88,000,000 		   20,000,000 
	 Purchase of trading securities	 7		   	 -	  	 (19,592,578)
	 Proceeds from sale of trading securities	 7		   4,658,960 		   14,729,687 
	 Purchase of property, plant and equipment	 5		   (547,276)		   (1,033,686)
	 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment			   6,600 		   5,700 
	 Advances made to Bahamas Government	 10		   90,000,000 		   (59,000,000)
	 Advances repaid by Bahamas Government	 10		   (90,000,000)		   30,000,000 
	 Purchase of Bridge Authority bonds	 13		   (2,500)		  (86,000)
	 Proceeds from matured Bridge Authority bonds	 13		   506,000 		  -   
	 Purchase of Bahamas Government Registered Stocks	 11		   (114,285,800)		  (61,272,300)
	 Proceeds from sales and maturities of Bahamas						    
		  Government Registered Stocks	 11		   22,205,500 		   9,885,800 
	 Repayments of loans by Bahamas Development Bank	 12		   400,000 		   200,000 
	 Purchase of Bahamas Government Treasury bills	 15		   (450,446,229)		   (878,509,510)
	 Proceeds from the sale and maturities of Bahamas						    
		  Government Treasury bills	 15		   517,341,258 		   821,756,250 
	 Proceeds from bank deposits maturing over 3 months			    	 -	  	 16,600,528 
	 Interest received			   28,471,351 		  24,788,769 
								      
Net Cash Provided by/(Used in) Investing Activities			   10,921,145 		   (91,344,527)
								      
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:						    
	 Purchase of SDRs 	 8		   (24,980,000)		   (30,337,592)
	 Interest paid			    (180,049)		   (124,159)
							     
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities			   (25,160,049)		   (30,461,751)
								      
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND 						    
	 CASH EQUIVALENTS			   31,659,529 		   (76,307,258)
								      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT						    
	 BEGINNING OF YEAR			    123,606,735 		   199,913,993 
								      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR		   $	 155,266,264 	 $	 123,606,735 
								      
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ARE 						    
	 COMPRISED OF THE FOLLOWING:						    
		  Cash and deposits			   155,210,814		  122,439,760 
		  Cash on hand (included in receivables and other assets)			    55,450 		   1,166,975 

				    $	 155,266,264 	 $	 123,606,735 
								      
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014										        
	

(Expressed in Bahamian dollars)	
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION		 							     

	 The Central Bank of The Bahamas, (the “Bank”) was established under the Central Bank of The Bahamas Act, and 
was continued under the Central Bank of The Bahamas Act, 2000 (the Act). Its main place of business is located 
at Frederick Street, Nassau, Bahamas. The Bank’s principal business is the provision of Central Banking facilities 
for the Commonwealth of The Bahamas. In accordance with the Act, it is the duty of the Bank to promote and 
maintain monetary stability and credit and balance of payments conditions conducive to the orderly development 
of the Bahamian economy; in collaboration with the financial institutions, to promote and maintain adequate bank-
ing services and high standards of conduct and management therein; and to advise the Minister on any matter of 
a financial or monetary nature referred by him to the Bank for its advice.						    
			 

2.	 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)

	 The new and revised IFRSs prescribe new accounting recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements 
applicable to the Bank. When applicable, the adoption of the new standards was made in accordance with their 
transitional provisions; otherwise, the adoption is accounted for as change in accounting policy under IAS 8: “Ac-
counting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.							     
		

	 2.1	 New and revised IFRSs with no material effect on the financial statements			 

	 The following new and revised standards have been adopted in the current year. The application of these new and 
revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for the current and prior years, except 
when specifically disclosed,  but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.			 
						    

	 1. Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

	 The application guidance to IAS 32 has been amended to clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial 
assets and financial liabilities. A financial asset and a financial liability shall be offset and the net amount presented 
in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Bank (a) currently has a legally enforceable right 
to set off the recognized amounts and (b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. The Bank does not have any financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify for the 
offset based on the criteria.	

	 2.2	 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

	 1. IFRS # 9 - Financial instruments									       

	 The new standard requires all financial assets within the scope of IAS # 39 to be stated at amortized cost or fair 
value where the intention is to hold such instruments to collect the contractual cash flows which are repayments of 
capital and interest. All other investments are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Furthermore, 
where changes in the fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss can be attributed to changes 
in credit risk, those changes are recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). The only exception would be 
when such treatment would give rise to, or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit and loss.				  
					   

	 A revised version issued in July 2014 mainly includes impairment requirements for financial assets and limited 
amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other com-
prehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments. The standard is effective 
for years commencing on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier adoption permitted.
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2.	 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
	 STANDARDS (IFRSs) (Continued)

	 2. Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

	 The amendments to IAS 16 prohibit entities from using the revenue-based depreciation method for items of prop-
erty, plant and equipment. Currently, the Bank uses the straight-line method  of depreciation for its property, plant 
and equipment. The amendments are effective on or after January 1, 2016						    
			 

	 3. Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

	 The amendments to IAS 19 clarify how an entity should account for contributions made by employees or third 
parties to defined benefit plans, based on whether those contributions are dependent on the number of years of 
service provided by the employee. The amendments are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after July 
1, 2014.									       

	 The Bank does not anticipate that the application of these amendments to IAS 19 will have significant impact on 
its financial statements. 									       

	

	 4. Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle								      
	

	 IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement					   

	 Entities are not prevented by the issuance of IFRS 13 and consequential amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 9 from 
measuring short-term receivables and payables that have no stated interest rate at their invoiced amounts without 
discounting, if the effect of not discounting is immaterial. The amendments are effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES								      
	

	 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

	 (a)  Statement of compliance	

	 The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Stand-
ards (IFRS). 									       

										        

	 (b)  Basis of preparation

	 The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for financial instruments that 
are measured at fair values and amortized cost, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is 
generally based on the fair value of consideration given in exchange for assets.						   
			 

	 (c)  Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the amount of rev-
enue can be measured reliably; revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis. 									       

										        

THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)						    
		

	 (d)  Leases	 								      

	 The Bank as lessee									       

	 Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.		
							     

	 (e)  Foreign currency translation									       

	 i.	 Functional currency and presentation currency

	 Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Bank operates. The financial statements are presented in Bahamian dollars; the Bahamian dollar is 
the Bank’s functional and presentation currency. 								      

	 ii.	Transactions and balances									       

	 Transactions in currencies other than Bahamian dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange ruling at the time of 
the transactions. Balances in currencies other than Bahamian dollars at the statement of financial position date are 
converted at the rate of exchange prevailing at that date.							     

	 The net change in the Bank’s assets and liabilities arising from movements in currency exchange rates is included 
in the statement of comprehensive income and, in accordance with Sections 32(2)(a) and 32(2)(b) of the Act, the 
unrealized portion is transferred from general reserve to an exchange equalization account within equity.		
							     

	 (f)  Borrowing costs									       

	 Borrowing costs are recognized in the period in which they are incurred.					   
	

	 (g)  Retirement benefits									       

	 The Bank operates both a defined benefit plan and a defined contribution plan.				  
					   

	 Defined Benefit Plan									       

	 The Bank’s defined benefit plan is a contributory plan with participants being permanent employees who joined 
the Bank prior to age 55 and before December 31, 2013. The cost of providing such benefits is determined using 
the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each statement of financial position 
date. Remeasurements are recognized in other comprehensive income when they occur. Past service cost is rec-
ognized immediately in the period of a plan amendment or curtailment. Contributions are made by employees at 
5% of basic salary and the difference by the Bank, which equals to 14.4% (2013: 16.9%). 			 
						    

	 The amount recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the retirement benefit 
obligation and the current service cost reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset arising as a result of 
this calculation is measured at the lower of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling. The asset 
ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available for refund from the plan or reductions in future con-
tributions to the plan.
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3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)						    

	 Defined Contribution Plan									      

	 Employees who join the Bank on or after 1 January 2014 participate in the defined contribution plan. The Bank 
pays fixed contributions, equivalent to 10% of each member employee’s salary, into the Plan which is administered 
by a third party. These contributions are expensed in the period in which the employees rendered the services 
entitling them to the benefits. In addition, each member also contributes 5% of their salary.

										        

	 (h)  Health insurance subsidy for retirees									      

	 The Bank pays a portion of the group life and health insurance (GLHI) premium for retirees who elect to remain 
covered by the Bank’s GLHI policy after retirement. The amount recognized in the statement of financial position 
represents the present value of the health insurance subsidy benefit  obligation. 					   
				  

	 (i)  Fiduciary items									       

	 No account is taken in these financial statements of assets held or liabilities incurred by the Bank in a fiduciary 
capacity.									       

	 (j)  Property, plant and equipment									      

	 Property, plant and equipment are recorded at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Property, plant and equipment are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

	 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appro-
priate, only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to general and 
administrative expenses during the financial period in which they occur.						    
			 

	 Depreciation is provided in equal annual instalments so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land which is 
not depreciated, over their estimated useful lives. The following rates are used:					    	
			 

									             Rate			 

			   Buildings and renovations			   2%   - 20%			 
			   Office equipment				    20% - 33 %			 
			   Computer software				    33% - 50%			 
			   Office furniture and fittings			   20%			 
			   Other fixed assets				    20% - 33%			 
										        
	 Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 

between the sales proceeds and the carrying value of the asset and is recognized in the statement of comprehen-
sive income.									       

	 The Bank reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period. 
If management’s expectations differ from previous estimates, indicating signs of impairment, then, changes are 
made to the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment.

THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014
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THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)						      	
		

	 (k)  Provisions									       

	 Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation.									       

	 The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obli-
gation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount 
is the present value of those cash flows.									       

	 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and 
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.								      
	

	 (l)  Financial instruments									       

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Bank’s statement of financial position when the Bank 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.							     
	 	

	 (m)  Financial assets									       

	 Financial assets represent a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset or to exchange financial 
assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions favourable to the Bank.

	 For those financial assets carried at fair value, they are ranked into Levels 1 to 3, based on the extent to which the 
fair value is observable:									       

	 Level 1 - Fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities.									      

	 Level 2 - Fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from 
prices).									       

	 Level 3 - Fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or 
liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

	 Classification of financial assets									       

	 The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL), available-for-sale (AFS), held-to-maturity (HTM) and loans and receivables. The classification de-
pends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of 
its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.				  
					   

	 i.	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss						    

	 Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at 
FVTPL. A financial asset is held for trading if it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near 
term; or on initial recognition, it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank has a recent actual 
pattern of short-term profit taking; or it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)						      	
									       

	 ii. Available-for-sale financial assets									       

	 Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified 
as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Chang-
es in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets relating to foreign currency rates, interest income calculated 
using the effective interest rate method and dividends on AFS equity investments are recognized in the statement 
of comprehensive income. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognized directly 
in equity.

	 Bahamas Government Treasury bills are classified as available-for-sale financial assets.					  
				  

	 iii. Held-to-maturity financial assets									       

	 Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that the Bank’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the Bank were 
to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be reclassified as 
available-for-sale.									       

	 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by foreign governments and Clifton Heritage Authority bonds are clas-
sified as held-to-maturity investments. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are meas-
ured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any impairment. 

	 Financial assets at amortized cost and the effective interest method				  

	 Debt instruments are measured at amortized cost, if both of the following conditions are met:

	 (1)	 The asset is held within a business model where the objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows; and

	 (2)	 The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.						    
	

	 Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are sub-
sequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any impairment, with interest 
income recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.						    
	

	 The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of al-
locating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective inter-
est rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or 
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition of the debt instrument.	

	 iv. Loans and receivables									      

	 Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market, other than, (a) those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the short term, (b) those 
that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as available-for-sale, or (c) those for which the Bank may not 
recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration, which are classified as 
available-for-sale. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost.
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3.	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)	 						    
			 

	 Financial assets set out below are classified as loans and receivables originated by the Bank and not held-for-
trading. These amounts are stated at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method less any provision for 
impairment.									       

		  	 Advances to Bahamas Government 								      

		  	 Loans to Bahamas Development Bank								      

		  	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks								      

		  	 Bahamas Development Bank bonds								      

		  	 Bridge Authority bonds

		   	 Employee loans and other receivables								      
										        
	 Section 29(1)(c) of the Act requires that the total amount of Government issued or guaranteed securities held at 

any time by the Bank, which mature beyond five (5) years after their date of issue, shall not exceed 20% of the 
demand liabilities of the Bank. At the statement of financial position date, such securities held by the Bank, which 
matured beyond five years after their date of issue, was 26.18% (2013: 23.03%) of demand liabilities. The Ministry 
of Finance is in the process of amending the Act consistent with the Bank’s current operating profile, which would 
also encompass the above deviation.									       

	 The Act further requires that any holdings of Government issued or guaranteed securities should not have maturi-
ties extending beyond 20 years from the date of their acquisition. The Bank held no securities maturing beyond 20 
years, at either December 31, 2014 or 2013. 

		  	 						    
	 (n)  Impairment of financial assets									       

	 Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each 
reporting period.									       

	 The Bank assesses at the end of each year whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. 
A financial asset is impaired if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 		

	 For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference be-
tween the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial 
assets’ original effective interest rate.									       

	 If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to 
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment is decreased and 
the decrease is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. At year-end, there were no indicators of 
impairment.

	 (o)  Derecognition of financial assets

	 The Bank derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and 
continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated 
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, of a 
transferred financial asset, the Bank continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized 
borrowing for the proceeds received.									       
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	 3.	SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)	 	

	 (p) Financial liabilities	

	 Financial liabilities are any liabilities that are contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to 
another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are 
potentially unfavourable to the Bank; or a contract that will or may be settled in the Bank’s own equity instrument. 
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or other financial 
liabilities.									       

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized and subsequently measured at fair 
value with any gains or losses recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Fair value is computed using 
quoted market prices.

	 Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using 
the effective interest rate method, where applicable. The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating 
the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the 
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition of the 
financial liability.													           
		

	 (q)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 The Bank derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or they expire.									       

	

	 (r)  Cash and cash equivalents	 								      

	 For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three 
months’ maturity from date of acquisition and demand deposits.							     
		

	 (s)  Currency inventory

	 Currency notes and coins are recorded at cost upon receipt of new stock from the printers and are placed into 
inventory. They are subsequently expensed when issued into circulation. 						    
			 

	 (t)  Numismatic coins

	 Numismatic coins, which are specially minted or packaged as collectors’ items and are not circulated as currency,  
are not included within coins in circulation. Any profit or loss arising from the sale of these coins is included in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

	

	 (u)  Investment Currency Market provision								      

	 A provision account has been established to recognize the Bank’s obligations to investors, who might redeem 
premiums paid upon repatriation of foreign currency previously purchased.						    
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4.	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS								      
	

	 The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Such accounting estimates and judgments are disclosed in Notes 3 (g), (h), (j), (k), (n), 23, 27, 29 and 30.

5.	 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT										        
					   

					    Buildings			   Office	 Other
		  and	 Office	 Computer	 Furniture	 Fixed	  
	 Land	 Renovations	 Equipment	 Software	 and Fittings	 Assets	 Total

		  COST						    
			   As of January 1, 2014		  2,452,938		  14,679,776 		  10,275,081		  8,831,123		  6,565,859		  297,985		  43,102,762
			   Additions		  -		  90,911 		  166,166		  273,441		  16,758		   -		  547,276
			   Disposals/Retirement		  -		  -		  (116,435)		  (53,245)		  (10,786)		  (43,065)		  (223,531)
			     As of December 31, 2014 		  2,452,938 		  14,770,687		  10,324,812		  9,051,319 		  6,571,831		  254,920		  43,426,507 
														            
		  ACCUMULATED 
			   DEPRECIATION											             
			   As of January 1, 2014		   -		  7,361,384		  8,671,365 		  8,457,466 		   6,258,824	  	 239,595 		   30,988,634 
			   Charge for the year		  -		   434,570 		  728,505 		   332,962 		   116,260 		   20,997 		   1,633,294 
			   Disposals/Retirement		  -		  -		  (83,625)		   (53,245)		   (7,437)		   (43,065)		   (187,372)
			     As of December 31, 2014 		  -   	 7,795,954 		   9,316,245 		   8,737,183 		   6,367,647 		   217,527 		   32,434,556 
															             

		  NET BOOK VALUE															             
		    As of December 31, 2014 	 $	 2,452,938 	 $	 6,974,733 	 $	 1,008,567 	 $	 314,136 	 $	 204,184 	 $	 37,393	 $	 10,991,951
											         
		  COST														              	
			   As of January 1, 2013		  2,452,938 		  14,654,654 		  10,081,104 		  8,576,445 		   6,430,009 		   283,442 		   42,478,592 
			   Additions		   -   	 25,122 		   552,296 		   254,678 		   140,400 		   61,190 		   1,033,686 
			   Disposals/Retirement		   -		   -   	 (358,319)		  -   	 (4,550)		  (46,647)		   (409,516)
			     As of December 31, 2013 		  2,452,938 		   14,679,776 		  10,275,081 		   8,831,123 		   6,565,859 		   297,985 		   43,102,762 
						      										        
		  ACCUMULATED 
			   DEPRECIATION	 														            
			   As of January 1, 2013		  -   	 6,924,288 		  7,877,065 		  8,232,122		   6,142,555 		  283,442		  29,459,472 
			   Charge for the year		   -   	 437,096 		   896,160 		   225,344 		   120,819 		   2,800 		   1,682,219 
			   Disposals/Retirement		   -   	 -   	 (101,860)		   - 		  (4,550)		   (46,647)		   (153,057)
			     As of December 31, 2013		  -   	 7,361,384 		   8,671,365 		   8,457,466 		   6,258,824 		   239,595 		   30,988,634 
																              
		  NET BOOK VALUE															             
			     As of December 31, 2013 	$	 2,452,938	 $	 7,318,392	  $	 1,603,716	 $	 373,657	 $	 307,035	 $	 58,390	 $	12,114,128
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6.	 EXTERNAL ASSETS									       

	

	 External assets comprise those assets defined by Section 18(1) of the Act. The Act also requires that the value of 
external assets shall not at any time be less than 50% of the value of the aggregate of the notes and coins in circu-
lation and other demand liabilities of the Bank. At year end, external assets represented 73.45% (2013: 74.11%) 
of such liabilities. 									       

										        

7.	 MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED OR GUARANTEED BY FOREIGN GOVERNMENTS				  
					   

	 Section 18(1) of the Act requires that marketable securities issued or guaranteed by foreign governments, which 
mature beyond 5 years, shall at no time constitute more than 30% in value of the Bank’s external assets. At De-
cember 31, 2014, marketable securities held by the Bank, which mature after 5 years, constituted 36.58% (2013: 
33.02%) of the Bank’s external assets.

	 The Ministry of Finance is in the process of amending the Act consistent with the Bank’s current operating profile, 
which would also encompass the above deviation.

	 (a)  The movements in marketable securities classified as held-to-maturity are as follows:

		  2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		  542,758,365		  551,824,816
	 Purchases at nominal value		  86,000,000		   10,000,000 
	 Discount on purchases		  (613,281)		   (182,813)
	 Maturities		  (88,000,000)		  (20,000,000)
	 Discount earned 		  1,150,478		  1,161,867
	 Amortized premium		  (46,880)		   (45,505)

	 Total		  541,248,682		  542,758,365
	 Add: Accrued interest		  3,664,656		  3,689,135

	 Ending balance	 $	 544,913,338 	 $	 546,447,500 
								     

		
	 These securities bear interest at rates varying between 1.25% and 4.75% (2013: 1.25% and 4.75%).	

	 (b)  The movements in marketable securities classified as held-for-trading are as follows:

		  2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		  4,506,640		   -   
	 Purchases		  -		   	 19,592,578 
 	 Sales		  (4,506,640)		   (14,701,953)
	 Unrealized fair value loss		  -		   	 (383,985)

	 Total		  -		   	 4,506,640 
	 Add: Accrued interest		  -		   	 10,608 

	 Ending balance	 $	 -		  $	 4,517,248	
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8.	 INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND									       
	

	 Background

	 The International Monetary Fund (IMF) is an organization of 188 countries, working to foster global monetary coop-
eration, secure financial stability, facilitate international trade, promote high employment and sustainable economic 
growth, and reduce poverty around the world.

	 The Bahamas was admitted as a member of the IMF on August 21, 1973.					   
	

	 Quota, Subscriptions and Reserve Tranche

	 The IMF’s quota system was created to raise funds for loans. Each IMF member country is assigned a quota, or 
contribution, that reflects the country’s relative size in the global economy. Countries contribute money to a pool 
through a quota system from which countries with payment imbalances can borrow funds temporarily.	

	 Quotas are denominated in Special Drawing Rights (SDRs), the IMF’s unit of account, which is essentially a speci-
fied basket of four (4) major international currencies (i.e., the U.S. Dollar, Japanese Yen, Euro, and Pound Sterling).

	 The Bahamas is assigned a quota of SDR 130,300,000 which represents 0.05% of the total quota allocated by 
the IMF. 

	 The quota is payable partly in SDRs or specified international currencies, and partly in the member’s own currency/
promissory notes. The difference between a member’s quota and the IMF’s total holdings of its currency/promisso-
ry notes is a country’s Reserve Tranche Position (RTP). The member country can access its reserve tranche funds 
at its discretion, and is not under an immediate obligation to repay those funds to the IMF. 

	 Bahamas Tranche

	 The reserve tranche represents the amount by which The Bahamas’ quota of SDRs with the IMF exceeds sub-
scription payments as noted below:										       

			   2014		  2013		
			   SDR	 $	 SDR	 $

					   
Quota	 130,300,000	 188,779,295	 130,300,000	 200,661,892
Subscription payments in prom notes	 (119,507,383)	 (173,143,042)	 (119,385,163)	 (183,853,052)
Subscription payments in currency	 (4,532,337)	 (6,566,328)	 (4,654,557	 (7,168,014)

Reserve tranche	 6,260,280	 9,069,925	 6,260,280	 9,640,826
	

	 The reserve tranche was purchased from the Government of The Bahamas in 1976. Subsequent to that purchase, 
the Bank has funded 25% of each increase in the IMF subscriptions of The Bahamas by issuing interest-free prom-
issory notes which are payable on demand. In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that an outflow of re-
sources employing economic benefits will be required to settle these promissory notes, which total $52,660,417 
(2013: $51,093,226). Consequently, this amount is not recognized in the Bank’s statement of financial position, 
nor as a contingent liability.									      
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8.	 INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND (Continued)		

Bahamas Tranche (Continued)	 				  
	

	 SDR Holdings and SDR Allocation									       

	 The IMF may allocate SDRs to member countries in proportion to their IMF quotas. SDRs allocated is treated as 
a liability in the financial statements of a member, with an equal asset initially being recorded in the form of SDR 
Holdings. 	

	 Members can hold their SDRs as part of their international reserves or sell part or all of their SDR holdings. Members 
can exchange SDRs for freely usable currencies (and vice versa) among themselves and with prescribed holders; 
such exchange can take place under a voluntary arrangement or under designation by the IMF.				  
					   

	 IMF members can also use SDRs in operations and transactions involving the IMF, such as the payment of interest 
on and repayment of loans, or payment for future quota increases.	

		
	 Consequently, a member’s SDR Holdings (asset) and SDR Allocation (liability) can be different at a point in time. 

	 The IMF pays interest at the SDR interest rate on the amount that a member’s net holdings exceed their cumulative 
allocations. Conversely, if a member’s SDR holdings are below its allocation, it incurs a net interest obligation. 

	 Interest on SDR holdings and allocations are received/paid quarterly. The SDR interest rate is determined weekly 
on each Friday and is based on a weighted average of representative interest rates on 3-month debt in the money 
markets of the basket of four (4) SDR international currencies. 

	 SDR Holdings										        
	 2014	 2013
	 SDR	 $	 SDR	 $
Beginning balance	 38,030,916	 58,567,579	 18,491,399	 28,419,799
Purchase of SDRs	 16,205,900	 24,980,000	 19,607,550	  30,337,592 
Remuneration & other charges	 (76,913)	 (111,432)	 (68,033)	 (104,771)
Currency movement (unrealized)	  -	  (4,969,007)	  - 	 (85,041)
	 54,159,903	 78,467,140	 38,030,916	 58,567,579
Add:  Accrued interest		  6,744		  11,639

Total		  78,473,884		  58,579,218
				  
	
SDR Allocation					   
	 2014	 2013		
	 SDR	 $	 SDR	 $
Beginning balance	 124,413,351	 191,596,457	 124,413,351	 191,213,354
Currency movement (unrealized)	 -	  	 (11,345,769)	 -	
	 383,103
Ending balance	 124,413,351	 180,250,688	 124,413,351	 191,596,457
Add:  Accrued interest		  15,141		  36,853

Total		  180,265,829		  191,633,310
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8.	 INTERNATIONAL MONETARY FUND (Continued)		

	 Bahamas Tranche (Continued)	 									       

	 In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Governors of the IMF, effective December 11, 1978, The Bahamas 
became a participant in the Special Drawing Rights Department of the IMF, receiving a total allocation of SDR 
10,230,000 between 1979 and 1981. A general allocation took effect on August 28, 2009 and a special alloca-
tion on September 9, 2009 and increased the Bank’s allocations to SDR 124,413,351. 

	 The interest rate, which is the same on both SDR holdings and allocation, varied between 0.04% and 0.13% 
(2013: 0.06% and 0.13%) during the period.

9.	 BAHAMAS DEVELOPMENT BANK BONDS							     

	 The movement in the Bahamas Development Bank bonds is as follows:					   

		  2014	 2013

	 Balance		  4,000,000		  4,000,000
	 Add:  Accrued interest		  55,697 		   55,697 

	 Total	 $	 4,055,697	 $	 4,055,697 
										        

	 These bonds bear interest at the Bahamian prime rate of 4.75% (2013: 4.75%) with $2,000,000 each maturing 
on August 1, 2025 and November 1, 2025, respectively.							     
		

10.	 ADVANCES TO BAHAMAS GOVERNMENT							       	
	

	 Sections 28(3) and 28(4) of the Act require that advances to the Government, which may be outstanding at any 
one time, shall not exceed the lesser of either (a) 10% of the annual average ordinary revenue of the Government 
over the three preceding years, for which the accounts have been laid before Parliament, or (b) 10% of the esti-
mated ordinary revenue of the Government for the year.							     
		

	 At the year end date, advances to the Government were 10.00% (2013: 9.96%) of the lesser of such revenues. 	
								      

	 The movements in advances for the year are as follows:							     

		  2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		   134,657,052 		   105,657,052 
	 Additions		   90,000,000 		   59,000,000 
	 Repayments		   (90,000,000)		   (30,000,000)

	 Total		  134,657,052		   134,657,052 
	 Add: Accrued interest		  578,731 		   505,879 

	 Ending balance	 $	 135,235,783	 $	 135,162,931
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10.	 ADVANCES TO BAHAMAS GOVERNMENT (Continued)	 							     
		

	 These advances, which are repayable on demand, bear interest at the following rates:				  

	 Rate	 2014	 2013

	 0.097%		  -   		   22,970,444 
	 0.138%		  -   		   7,099,000 
	 0.218%		  -   		   20,000,000 
	 0.353%		  -   		   20,000,000 
	 0.356%		  19,069,444		   29,000,000 
	 0.372%		  -   		   10,000,000 
	 0.395%		  20,000,000		   -   
	 0.483%		  5,000,000 		   -   
	 0.512%		  5,000,000		   -   
	 0.554%		  60,000,000		   -   
	 0.638%		  20,000,000		  20,000,000
	 0.840%		  5,587,608		  5,587,608

			   $	 134,657,052 		   $134,657,052 
										        

11.	 BAHAMAS GOVERNMENT REGISTERED STOCKS								      
	

	 The movements in Bahamas Government Registered Stocks are as follows:				  
		  		
	 2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		  220,879,500		  169,493,000
	 Purchases		  114,285,800		  61,272,300
	 Redemptions/maturities		  (22,205,500)		  (9,885,800)

	 Total		  312,959,800		  220,879,500
	 Add:  Accrued interest		  3,577,455		  2,630,041

	 Ending balance	 $	 316,537,255	 $	 223,509,541
	

	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks bear interest at rates ranging between 3.5% and 6.00% (2013: 4.78% 
and 6.00%).
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12.	 LOANS TO BAHAMAS DEVELOPMENT BANK								      
	

	 This balance is comprised of two Government Guaranteed loan facilities made available in accordance with Sec-
tion 29(l) (f) of the Act.

	 The movements in loans to Bahamas Development Bank are as follows:					   

		  2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		  4,550,000		  4,750,000
	 Repayments		  (400,000)		  (200,000)

	 Total		  4,150,000		  4,550,000
	 Add:  Accrued interest		  57,035		  61,514

	 Ending balance	 $	 4,207,035	 $	 4,611,514 
						    
	 These loans bear interest at 2.00% (2013: 2.00%), with $525,000 and $3,625,000 maturing on October 21, 

2018 and October 28, 2024, respectively. 						   
			 

13.	 BRIDGE AUTHORITY BONDS									       
										        

	 The movements in the Bridge Authority bonds are as follows:			 
			 
	 2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		  968,300		  882,300
	 Purchases		  2,500		  86,000
	 Maturities		  (506,000)		   -   

	 Total		  464,800		  968,300
	 Add:  Accrued interest		  7,585		  15,433

	 Ending balance	 $	 472,385	 $	 983,733 
										        

	 These bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 1.25% to 1.63% (2013: 1.00% to 1.63%) per annum over the 
Bahamian prime rate with $442,900, $4,000 and $17,900 maturing on March 24, 2019, 2024 and 2029, respec-
tively. 														            
				     

14.	 CLIFTON HERITAGE AUTHORITY BONDS 		  				 
						    

	 These bonds, which mature on May 20, 2025, bear interest at 5.25%. The balance of the Clifton Heritage Author-
ity bonds is made up as follows:									       

		  2014	 2013

	 Balance		  634,600		  634,600
	 Add:  Accrued interest		  3,834 		   3,834 

	 Total	 $	 638,434	 $	 638,434 
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15.	 BAHAMAS GOVERNMENT TREASURY BILLS						   
			 

	 Bahamas Government Treasury bills are discounted at rates ranging between 99.55% and 99.86 (2013: 99.53% 
and 99.91%) maturing 30 to 181 days from acquisition. 

	 The movements in the Bahamas Government Treasury bills are as follows:				  
				  
	 2014	 2013

	 Beginning balance		  186,439,040 		   129,685,780 
	 Purchases		  450,446,229 		   878,509,510 
	 Redemptions/maturities		  (517,341,258)		  (821,756,250)

	 Total		   119,544,011 		   186,439,040 
	 Add:  Discount earned		  113,403 		   146,906 

	 Ending balance	  $	 119,657,414 	 $	 186,585,946 

16.	 NOTES IN CIRCULATION						   
			 

	 In accordance with the Act, the Bank has the sole authority to issue banknotes for circulation in The Bahamas. A 
breakdown, by denomination, is presented below.								      
	

	 Notes	 2014	 2013

	 $	 0.50 		  669,736 		   668,148 
	 $	 1.00 		   22,114,045 		   21,279,807 
	 $	 3.00 		   1,921,257 		   1,903,731 
	 $	 5.00		   10,730,945 		   10,451,290 
	 $	 10.00		   15,794,890 		   15,196,250 
	 $	 20.00		   57,060,500 		   54,189,060 
	 $	 50.00		   102,993,900 		   96,746,200 
	 $	 100.00		   142,783,600 		   132,180,800 
	 Other bank notes		   79,835 		   79,835 

			   $	 354,148,708	 $	 332,695,121 
										        

17.	 DEPOSITS BY COMMERCIAL BANKS					   
				  

	 Deposits by commercial banks include balances maintained as statutory reserve in accordance with Section 19 
of the Act. Additional funds are also maintained and used to facilitate cheque-clearing/settlement and to effect 
foreign currency transactions.									       

	 The present level of the statutory reserve applicable to commercial banks is 5% of total Bahamian dollar deposit 
liabilities, of which at least 4% must be placed on deposit with the Bank. These deposits are interest free and are 
repayable on demand, subject to maintenance of the minimum balance as required by the Act.	

18.	 DEPOSITS BY INTERNATIONAL AGENCIES				  

	 The Bank is designated as the fiscal agency for the Commonwealth of The Bahamas. Deposits by international 
agencies include deposits in Bahamian currency by the World Bank, the International Monetary Fund and the Inter-
American Development Bank. These deposits are interest free and are repayable on demand.		
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19.	 EQUITY AND RESERVES					   
				  

	 Capital management - The Bank’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept than ‘equity’ 
on the face of the statement of financial position, are:								     
	

		  	 To comply with the capital requirements outlined in Sections 6 and 7 of the Act;			 
										        

		  	 To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern in its provision of Central Banking 	
		  facilities for The Bahamas; and

								      
		  	 To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of the Bahamian economy.		

						    
	 Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored by the Bank’s management, and in accordance 

with the guidelines established by the Act. 									       
										        
	 At December 31, 2014, and 2013, the Bank’s paid up capital was equal to the authorized capital of $3,000,000.

	 Exchange equalization account - Under the terms of Sections 32(2) (a) and 32(2)(b) of the Act, this account 
represents the net accumulated unrealized profits or losses arising from the revaluation of foreign currency assets 
and liabilities of the Bank at the statement of financial position date. 						    
			 

	 Building fund - Profit for the year ended December 31, 2008 of $6,980,403 before restatement, was transferred 
to a fund for construction of a building in the near future. During the year, the income from allotted bank license 
fees amounting to $3,700,000 was transferred to the same fund.	

	 General reserve - Section 7(2) of the Act requires that, at the end of any year where the amount in the general 
reserve exceeds twice the authorized capital of the Bank or 15% of its demand liabilities, whichever is greater, the 
excess shall be paid to the Consolidated Fund, unless the Minister of Finance determines otherwise.

	 The balance of the general reserve at the year end amounted to $119,522,592 (2013: $116,753,453 ) equivalent 
to 11.15% (2013: 11.66%) of demand liabilities. 
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20.	 INCOME	 				  
				  

		  2014	 2013

		  $	 $

	 Interest on foreign investments									       

	 Demand deposits		  23,986		  37,892
	 Fixed deposits		  397,289		  264,240
	 Marketable securities		  15,419,041		  15,254,599

				    15,840,316		  15,556,731
	 Interest on loans							     
	 Loans to Bahamas Development Bank		  85,432		  91,679
	 Advances to Bahamas Government		  572,823		  500,751
	 Staff loans		  335,067		  324,150

				    993,322		  916,580
	 Interest on domestic investments						   

	Bahamas Development Bank bonds		  190,000		  190,000
	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks		  12,468,669		  9,265,138
	 Bridge Authority bonds		  34,403		  54,604
	 Bahamas Government Treasury bills		  893,597		  606,014
	 Clifton Heritage bonds		  33,316		  33,317

				    13,619,985		  10,149,073
	

	 Unrealized exchange gain/(loss)		  5,808,047		  (458,818)

	 Realized exchange loss		  (144,941)		   	 -   

	 Unrealized loss on trading securities		  -		   (383,985)

	 Realized gain on trading securities		  152,320		  27,734

	 Interest expense on SDR allocation		  (158,337)		  (161,012)

								     
		

	 Other income							    
Allotted bank license fees		  3,700,000		   	 - 

	 Bank statutory fines		  530,321			   1,194
	 Commission on foreign currency sales		  612,118		  865,750
	 Premium on Investment Currency Market		  392,621		  301,815
	 Interest income on SDR holdings		  55,779		  35,627
	 Other			   158,095		  53,776

				    5,448,934		  1,258,162

	 Total income	 $	 41,559,646 	 $	 26,904,465 



2014 Central Bank of The Bahamas Annual Report and FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	 69

THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

21.	 EXPENSES						   
			 

		  2014	 2013

	 Staff costs							     

		  Salaries, wages and gratuity		  13,778,772		  13,108,496
		  Group insurance plan		  1,341,163		  1,270,350
		  Health insurance subsidy (Note 30)		  208,888		  193,494
		  Defined benefit pension (Note 29)		  1,449,555		  (5,677,405)
		  Defined contribution pension (Note 29)		  51,789 		   -   
		  Former governors’ retirement benefit		  117,614 		  117,613
		  Staff training		  430,438		  389,146
		  National insurance		  423,475		  413,542
		  Responsibility allowance		  190,625 		  191,041
		  Other		  276,669		  215,403

			   $	 18,268,988 	 $	 10,221,680 
								     

		
	 General and administrative									       

		  Currency		  1,468,550		  1,676,023
		  Professional fees		  1,050,444		  1,099,536
		  Utilities		  1,148,844		  1,150,773
		  Repairs and maintenance		  880,954		  882,541
		  Rent		  534,290		  539,892
		  Insurance		  263,607		  254,323
		  Subscription and membership fees		  225,755		  175,756
		  Cash shipment		  233,095		  210,104
		  Stationery and office supplies		  74,848		  91,707
		  Directors’ remuneration		  51,825		  49,100
		  Other		  881,239		  700,031

 			   $	 6,813,451 	 $	 6,829,786 
										        

22.	 THE DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION								      
	

	 In accordance with Section 5(1) of the Protection of Depositors Act, 1999, the Bank has made an initial capital 
contribution of $500,000 in the Deposit Insurance Corporation (DIC). This represents 100% of the paid-up por-
tion of the capital of DIC, which was established to manage the Deposit Insurance Fund set up to protect deposits 
placed with member institutions.									       

	 In the opinion of the Directors, the Bank does not have the power to govern the financial and operating policies of 
the DIC so as to attain benefits from its activities. Consequently, the Deposit Insurance Corporation is not treated 
as a subsidiary in these financial statements. 								      

	 Considering the substance of this transaction, this contribution does not meet the recognition criteria as an invest-
ment and was subsequently derecognized.	
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23.	 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 									       

										        

	 (a)	 Contingencies 

		 The Bank is party to claims in the normal course of business, which are at various stages of the judicial process. 
The Bank is defending all such claims, and in consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the outcomes, 
which cannot presently be determined, will not adversely affect its operations or financial position. 			 
				  

	 (b)	 Commitments 

		  (i)	 Leases

			   The Bank leases office space with lease terms of between three to five years. At year-end, the Bank was 
committed to the following payments:					   
				  

				    2014		  2013

		 Not later than one year		  182,671 		   369,146 
		  Later than one year but not later than five years		  16,500 		   199,171 

			   $	 199,171 	 $	 568,317 
								     

		

		  (ii)	 Printing of Currency

			   The Bank also commits to order currency from several mints and printers. At year-end, the Bank was com-		
		  mitted to the following payments for currency:					   
				  

					   
	 2014	 2013

		  Not later than one year		  2,407,982		  1,225,000
		  Later than one year but not later than five years		  506,686		  1,023,627 

			   $	 2,914,668 	 $	 2,248,627 
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24.	 CONCENTRATIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES								      
	

	 The Bank has the following concentrations of assets and liabilities:						    
	

		  2014	 2013

	 EXTERNAL ASSETS						   
Geographic Region						   
		 North America		  89.74%		  97.64%

		  Europe		  10.26%		  2.36%

					     100.00%		  100.00%
									      

Industry						   
	 Financial Sector		  100.00%		  100.00%

									      
DOMESTIC ASSETS						   
Geographic Region						   
		 Bahamas		  100.00%		  100.00%

									      
Industry						   
		 Government Sector		  100.00%		  100.00%

									      
DEMAND LIABILITIES						   
Geographic Region						   
		 Bahamas		  100.00%		  99.96%

		  Other		  0.00%		  0.04%

					     100.00%		  100.00%
									      

Industry						   
		 Financial Sector		  100.00%		  100.00%

									      
OTHER LIABILITIES						   
Geographic Region						   
		 North America		  100.00%		  100.00%

									      
Industry						   
	 Financial Sector		  100.00%		  100.00%
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25.	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS								        	

	 The Bank is related in terms of common ownership to all Government corporations and agencies in The Bahamas. 
Transactions and balances that the Bank has with such related entities are disclosed on the statement of financial 
position and accompanying notes. The amounts and terms of these transactions are discussed and agreed upon 
by the parties.									       

	 The Bank provides certain services to the Government of The Bahamas, in accordance with its mandate under 
Sections 26 to 29 of the Act. 									       

	 The Bank’s senior officials and directors are regarded to be its key management personnel and are considered 
related parties. 		

	 The following balances and transactions relate to key management personnel:						    
			 

	 (a)	 Compensation:					   

				    2014	 2013

	 Senior officials’ salaries and short-term benefits		  1,616,564 		   1,785,804 
	 Directors’ remuneration		  51,825 		   49,100 
	 Post-employment benefits		  169,095 		   158,001 

				    $	 1,837,484 	 $	 1,992,905 
										        

	 (b)	 Receivables and other assets include secured loans to employees totalling $9,781,677 (2013: $9,689,506), 
of which the following relates to key management personnel:								     
	

	 Loans:				  

				    2014	 2013

	 Beginning of the year		  1,046,565		  1,146,629
	 Advances during the year		  476,511		  68,074
	 Repayments during the year		  (410,630)		  (168,138)

	 End of the year	 $	 1,112,446 	 $	 1,046,565 
										        

	 (c)	 Accrued post-employment pension:					  
			   2014	 2013

	 Pension payments		  685,613		  394,956
	 Gratuity		  421,697		  424,038

	 End of the year	 $	 1,107,310 	 $	 818,994

26.	 FIDUCIARY ITEMS									       

										        

	 Section 24 of the Central Bank of The Bahamas Act, 2000 authorizes the Bank to accept unclaimed customer 
deposits that are required to be transferred to it by a bank in The Bahamas in accordance with the Banks and Trust 
Companies Regulation Act, hold these funds, and pay out money to any person entitled thereto. As at December 
31, 2014, the Bank held funds in respect of the unclaimed customer deposits amounting to $86,023,241 (2013: 
$77,242,631). These amounts are excluded from the statement of financial position.

								      

THE CENTRAL BANK OF THE BAHAMAS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS						    

	 The table below categorizes financial instruments based on the classification adopted by the Bank: 

	 Categories of Financial Instruments									       

		  December 31, 2014					   
	

		  Loans and 	 Fair Value	 Held-to-
		  Receivables 	 Through	 Maturity		  Total
		  (amortized 	 Profit and	 (amortized	 Available	 Carrying
		  cost)	 Loss	 cost) 	 for Sale	 Amount
		  $	 $	 $	 $	 $
	 EXTERNAL ASSETS							     
		  Cash and deposits	 155,210,814	 -	 -		  -		  155,210,814 
		  Trading securities	  -	  	 -	  -	  	 -	  	 -   
		  Marketable securities issued or 								      
			   guaranteed by foreign governments	  -   		  -	 544,913,338	 -		  544,913,338
		  International Monetary Fund:									       
			   Bahamas reserve tranche	 -		  9,069,925	 -		  -		  9,069,925
			   Special drawing rights - holdings	  -		  78,473,884	 -		  -	  	 78,473,884

	 DOMESTIC ASSETS								      
		  Bahamas Development Bank bonds	 4,055,697	  -	 -		  -		  4,055,697
		  Advances to Bahamas Government	 135,235,783	 -	 -		  -	  	135,235,783
		  Bahamas Government registered stocks	 316,537,255 	 -	  -		  -	  	316,537,255
		  Loans to Bahamas Development Bank	 4,207,035	  -	  -		  -		  4,207,035
		  Bridge Authority bonds	  472,385	 -	 -		  -		  472,385
		  Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	  -		  - 	 638,434	 -	  	 638,434 
		  Bahamas Government Treasury bills	  -	  	 -	  -		  119,657,414 	 119,657,414
		  Employee loans and other receivables	  13,481,677	 -	 -		  -		  13,481,677

	 TOTAL 	  629,200,646	 87,543,809	 545,551,772 	 119,657,414	 1,381,953,641
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27	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)	 				  
							     

	 Categories of Financial Instruments (Continued)	

		  December 31, 2014			 

		  Fair Value 	 Other	 Total
		  Through Profit	 Financial	 Carrying
	  	 and Loss 	 Liabilities	 Amount
		  $	 $	 $
	 DEMAND LIABILITIES				  

	 Deposits by commercial banks	 -	  607,745,338	  607,745,338	
	 Deposits by Bahamas Government				  
	   and Bahamas Government agencies	 -	 74,421,172	 74,421,172 

		  Deposits by international agencies	 -	  255,443	  255,443 
		  Accounts payable and other liabilities	 -	  5,661,623	 5,661,623	

	 Provision for Investment Currency Market	 -	  5,914,733	 5,914,733 
					   

	 OTHER LIABILITIES				  
	 International Monetary Fund:				  
	   Special drawing rights - allocation	  180,265,829 	  -	  180,265,829 

	 TOTAL 	  180,265,829 	  693,998,309	  874,264,138 
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)					   
			 

	 Categories of Financial Instruments  (Continued)					   

		  December 31, 2013			 

		  Loans and 	 Fair Value	 Held-to-
		  Receivables 	 Through	 Maturity		  Total
		  (amortized 	 Profit and	 (amortized	 Available	 Carrying
		  cost)	 Loss	 cost) 	 for Sale	 Amount
		  $	 $	 $	 $	 $
	 EXTERNAL ASSETS						    
		  Cash and deposits	  122,439,760	  -	  -	  -	  122,439,760
		  Trading securities	  -	  4,517,248	  -	  -	  4,517,248 
		  Marketable securities issued or 	
			   guaranteed by foreign governments	  - 	  -	  546,447,500 	 - 	  546,447,500 
		  International Monetary Fund:						    
			   Bahamas reserve tranche	  -	  9,640,826	 -	  -	  9,640,826 
	        Special drawing rights - holdings	  -   	 58,579,218	  -	  - 	  58,579,218 
									       
	
	 DOMESTIC ASSETS						    
		  Bahamas Development Bank bonds	  4,055,697 	  -	  - 	  -	  4,055,697
		  Advances to Bahamas Government	  135,162,931	  - 	  - 	  -	  135,162,931
		  Bahamas Government Registered Stocks	  223,509,541	  - 	  -	  -  	  223,509,541
		  Loans to Bahamas Development Bank	  4,611,514 	  - 	  -  	  -  	  4,611,514
		  Bridge Authority bonds	  983,733 	 -	  -	  - 	  983,733
		  Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	  - 	  -	  638,434	  -	  638,434 
		  Bahamas Government Treasury bills	  - 	  - 	  - 	 186,585,946	  186,585,946 
		  Employee loans and other receivables	  9,689,506	  -	  - 	  -	  9,689,506 

	 TOTAL 	 500,452,682	  72,737,292	  547,085,934	  186,585,946	1,306,861,854
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)					   
			 

	 Categories of Financial Instruments (Continued)

			   December 31, 2013			 
					   
	 Fair Value	 Other	 Total		
	 Through Profit 	 Financial	 Carrying

		  and Loss	 Liabilities	 Amount		
	 $	 $	 $

	 DEMAND LIABILITIES					   

		  Deposits by commercial banks	  -		  572,209,100	 572,209,100 
		  Deposits by Bahamas Government	
		    and Bahamas Government agencies	  -		  63,763,038 	 63,763,038 
		  Deposits by international agencies	 -	  	 434,461 	 434,461 
		  Accounts payable and other liabilities	  -	  	 4,542,626 	 4,542,626 
		  Provision for Investment Currency Market	 -		  4,537,716	 4,537,716 
			   	

	 OTHER LIABILITIES					   

		  International Monetary Fund:					       
		  Special drawing rights - allocation	 191,633,310	  -	  	 191,633,310 

	 TOTAL	 191,633,310	 645,486,941	 837,120,251
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)					   
			 

	 Fair value of financial instruments								     

									       

	 Below is a comparison of the carrying value and the fair value of the Bank’s financial instruments, other than those 
with a carrying value that approximates its fair value.								      

									       

		  2014	 2013	

		  Carrying Value	 Fair Value	 Carrying Value	 Fair Value

		  $	 $	 $	 $

	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS					   
Marketable securities issued or 

		  guaranteed by foreign governments	 544,913,338	 565,330,890	 546,447,500	 562,929,559
	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks 	 316,537,255	 319,034,785	 223,509,541	 230,107,829
	 Loans to Bahamas Development Bank	 4,207,035	 3,376,349	 4,611,514	 3,309,547
	 Bridge Authority bonds	 472,385	 504,379	 983,733	 1,028,835
	 Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	 638,434	 668,059	 638,434	 669,940

	 TOTAL	 866,768,447	 888,914,462	 776,190,722	 798,045,710
							     

	
	 (i)	 It is the directors’ opinion that the carrying value of Bahamas Government Treasury bills, receivables and other 

assets excluding staff loans, and accounts payable and other liabilities approximate their fair value due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments with no expected significant change in value.				  

									       

	 (ii)	 Investments in Bahamas Development Bank bonds yield market-based interest rates resulting in its carrying 
amount approximating its fair value. 								     

									       

	 (iii)	 Advances to Bahamas Government and deposits by commercial banks, international agencies, Bahamas 
Government and government agencies have no maturity dates making them demandable any time. Thus, the car-
rying amount approximates the fair value.	
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)					   
			 

	 Fair value hierarchy and measurements
								      

	 The following table categorizes into three levels the inputs used to measure fair value of financial instruments: 

	 Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
							     

	 Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2014	

		  Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total

		  $	 $	 $	 $

	 FINANCIAL ASSETS								      

	 Financial assets at fair value 
  	   through profit or loss					   

Bahamas reserve tranche	 9,069,925	  -	  -	  9,069,925 
	 Special Drawing rights - holdings	 78,473,884 	 -	  -  	 78,473,884 
							     

Available-for-sale financial assets					   
Bahamas Government Treasury bills	  -	  119,657,414 	  -	 119,657,414 

							     
		

	 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES					   
Financial liabilities at fair value 

	   through profit or loss					   
Special drawing rights - allocation	 180,265,829 	  -	  -	  180,265,829 

							     
		

		  	Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2013	

		  Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total

		  $	 $	 $	 $

	 FINANCIAL ASSETS					     			 

	 Financial assets at fair value 
	   through profit or loss					   

Trading securities	  4,517,248	  -	  -	  4,517,248 
	 Bahamas reserve tranche	 9,640,826	  -  	  - 	  9,640,826 
	 Special Drawing rights - holdings	 58,579,218 	 -	  -	  58,579,218 
						    
	 Available-for-sale financial assets								     

	 Bahamas Government Treasury bills	  -	  186,585,946	 -	 186,585,946 
									       

	 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES								      
	 Financial liabilities at fair value 
	   through profit or loss								      
	 Special drawing rights - allocation	 191,633,310	  - 	  -	  191,633,310
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)				  
	

	 Fair value hierarchy and measurements (Continued)					  

	 Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)			 
		

	 Level 1					   

	 The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is based on quoted market prices at the reporting 
date.

					   
	 Level 2					   

	 The fair value of financial instruments not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. 
The fair value of the financial instrument within this category has been estimated using the present value method.	
	

	 Level 3					   

	 The Bank does not have a level three classification.					   

	 There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the period.	
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27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)	

	 Fair value hierarchy and measurements (Continued)	

	 Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis				  
	 			 

		  Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2014	

		  Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total

		  $	 $	 $	 $
	 FINANCIAL ASSETS					   

			 
	 Cash and deposits	 155,210,814 	  - 	  -	  155,210,814 

	 Loans and receivables					   
Bahamas Development Bank bonds	  - 	  4,055,697	  -   	  4,055,697 

	 Advances to Bahamas Government	 -	  135,235,783	  -	  135,235,783 
	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks	 -   	 319,034,785	  -   	  319,034,785	

Loans to Bahamas Development Bank	 -   	 3,376,349	  -   	 3,376,349 
	 Bridge Authority bonds	  -  	  504,379	  -	  504,379 
	 Employee loans and other receivables	  -  	  - 	  13,481,677	  13,481,677 
									       
	 Held-to-maturity investments

	 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed						         
	   by foreign government 	 565,330,890	  -	  -	  565,330,890 

	 Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	  -	 668,059	  - 	  668,059 
									       
	 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES								      

	 Other financial liabilities 								      
	 Deposits by commercial banks	 607,745,338	 -	 -	 607,745,338	

Deposits by Bahamas Government					   
	 and Bahamas Government agencies	 74,421,172	  -	  -   	  74,421,172 

	 Deposits by international agencies	 255,443	  - 	  - 	  255,443 
	 Accounts payable and other liabilities	 5,661,623	  -	  -   	 5,661,623	

Provision for Investment Currency Market	 5,914,733 	  - 	  -	  5,914,733 
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		  Fair value measurements as at 31 December 2013		
				  

		  Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	 Total

		  $	 $	 $	 $
	 FINANCIAL ASSETS								      

	 Cash and deposits	 122,439,760	  -	  -   	 122,439,760

	 Loans and receivables								      
	 Bahamas Development Bank bonds	  -	 4,055,697	  - 	  4,055,697 
	 Advances to Bahamas Government	  -  	  135,162,931	  - 	  135,162,931 
	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks	  -  	  230,107,829	  -	  230,107,829	

Loans to Bahamas Development Bank	  - 	  3,309,547	  -	  3,309,547	
Bridge Authority bonds	  -	  1,028,835	 -	  1,028,835

	 Employee loans and other receivables	  - 	  - 	  10,856,481	  10,856,481

	 Held-to-maturity investments					   
Marketable securities issued or guaranteed

	    by foreign government	 562,929,559	  - 	  -	  562,929,559 
	 Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	  - 	  669,940	  - 	  669,940	

						    
		

	 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES								      

	 Other financial liabilities 

	 Deposits by commercial banks	 572,209,100	  -	  -	  572,209,100 
	 Deposits by Bahamas Government					   

  and Bahamas Government agencies	  63,763,038	  -	  - 	  63,763,038 
	 Deposits by international agencies	 434,461	  - 	  - 	  434,461 
	 Accounts payable and other liabilities	 4,542,626	  - 	  - 	  4,542,626 
	 Provision for Investment Currency Market	 4,537,716	  -	  -	  4,537,716 
									       

	 The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities disclosed under level 2 and 3 above have been determined 
considering, amongst other factors, discounted cash flows, with the most significant input being the Bahamian 
prime rate as the discount rate.								      

27.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)					   
	

	 Fair value hierarchy and measurements (Continued)	
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT								      

	 The Bank’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, resulting in the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and 
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and the 
operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Bank’s aim is therefore to achieve an 
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimize potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial perfor-
mance. 	

	 The most important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market risk includes 
currency risk and interest rate risk.									       

	 The Bank’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks, to set appropriate risk limits 
and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information sys-
tems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products 
and emerging best practices.									       

	 Risk management is carried out by the Investment and Monetary Policy Committees under policies approved by 
the Board of Directors. The committees identify, evaluate and hedge financial risks in close co-operation with the 
Bank’s operating units. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written poli-
cies covering specific areas, such as currency risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.	

				  

	 (i)  Credit risk									       

	 The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will cause a financial loss for the 
Bank by failing to discharge an obligation. Significant changes in the economy, or in the performance of a par-
ticular segment that represents a concentration in the Bank’s portfolio, could result in losses that are different 
from those provided for at the statement of financial position date. Credit exposures arise principally in loans and 
advances, debt securities and other bills in the Bank’s asset portfolio. The Investment Committee monitors credit 
risk management and control, and regular reports are provided to the Board of Directors. The Directors do not 
consider that the Bank is exposed to any significant credit risk because its financial assets consist primarily of cash 
and securities issued or guaranteed by either foreign Governments or The Bahamas Government.	

								      
	 Exposure to credit risk  	 2014	 2013

	 (a)	 Governments/Gilt-edged		  1,203,887,599		  1,164,443,210

	 (b)	 Banks with minimum credit-rating of A+		  155,210,814		  122,439,760

	 (c)	 Local Government Institutions		  9,373,551		  10,289,378

	 (d)	 Loans to staff members		  9,781,677		  9,689,506

		   	 $	1,378,253,641	 $1,306,861,854 
										        

	 (ii)  Market risk

	 The Bank takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial in-
strument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, 
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes 
in the level of volatility of market rates or prices. The Bank’s exposure to market risk arises from its financial invest-
ment portfolios.			 

	 The market risks arising from the Bank’s activities are monitored by the Investment Committee and the Monetary 
Policy Committee. Regular reports are submitted to the Board of Directors and operating units.		
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)								      
	

	 (a)  Currency risk									       

	 Apart from the Bank’s assets and liabilities with the IMF, which are denominated in SDRs, its’ exposure to foreign 
currency risk is limited. The only other significant foreign currency is US dollar, on which there is no exposure be-
cause the Bahamian dollar and the US dollar are at par. The Bank manages any other foreign currency exposure 
using internal hedging techniques, by matching assets and liabilities wherever possible.

					   

	 The following table presents the carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by currency. 			 
										        

		  BSD	 USD	 GBP	 EUR	 SDR

	 As of 31 December 2014						    
Assets							     
	 Cash and deposits	  -   	 155,164,447	 2,291	 44,076	  -   

		  Marketable securities	  -  	 544,913,338	  -   	  - 	  -   

		  International Monetary Fund:						    
	   Bahamas reserve tranche	  -	  -	  -	  -	 9,069,925

	      Special drawing rights - holdings	  - 	  -	 -	 -	 78,473,884

		  Domestic assets	 606,213,817	  -	  -	 - 	  -   

		  Property, plant and equipment	 10,991,951	  - 	  -	  - 	  -   

 		  Total assets	 $	617,205,768	 $	700,077,785	 $	 2,291	 $	 44,076	 $	  87,543,809 

								      
						    

	 Liabilities							     
	 Notes in circulation	 354,148,708	  -	  - 	 -	  -   

		  Coins in circulation	 21,301,243	  - 	  - 	  -	  -   

		  Deposits by commercial banks	 607,745,338	  - 	  -	  -	  -   

		  Deposits by Bahamas						    
	   Government and Bahamas 

		    Government agencies	 74,421,172	  -	  -	  -	  -   

		  Deposits by international 
		    agencies	  -	 255,443	  -	  - 	  -   

		  Accounts payable and 
		    other liabilities	 5,661,623  		   -   		   -   

		  Provision for Investment 							     
  	   Currency Market	  5,914,733	  -	  -	  -	  -   

		  Health insurance subsidy benefit 	 2,841,282	  -	  -	  -	  -   
		  Special drawing rights - allocation	  -	  -	  -	  -	  180,265,829 

		    Total liabilities	 $	1,072,034,099	 $	 255,443	 $	 - 	 $	 -	 $	180,265,829	
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)									       
				  

	 (a)  Currency risk (Continued)							     

	 The following table presents the carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by currency. 			 
										        

		  BSD	 USD	 GBP	 EUR	 SDR

	 As of 31 December 2013					   

	 Assets						    
					   

		  Cash and deposits	  -   	 122,196,555	 233,465	 9,740	  -   
		  Trading securities	  -	 4,517,248	 -	  -	  -   
		  Marketable securities	  -	 546,447,500	 -	  -	  -   
		  International Monetary Fund:						    

	   Bahamas reserve tranche	 -	  -	 -	 -	 9,640,826
		    Special drawing 
		       rights - holdings	  -   	 -	 -	 -	 58,579,218
		  Domestic assets	 578,576,457	  -	  - 	 -	  -
		  Property, plant and equipment	 12,114,128	 -	  -	 -	 -

 		  Total assets	 $	590,690,585	 $	673,161,303	 $	 233,465	 $	 9,740	 $	 68,220,044 
		  											         

Liabilities
		  Notes in circulation		  332,695,121 		  -	  	 -	  	 -	  	 -   
		  Coins in circulation	 19,988,492	 -	 -	  -	  -   
		  Deposits by commercial banks	 572,209,100	  - 	  -	 -	  -   
		  Deposits by Bahamas 
		    Government and Bahamas 
		    Government agencies	 63,763,038	  -	  -	  -	  -   
		  Deposits by international agencies	 -	 434,461	  -	  -	 -   
		  Accounts payable and other 
		    liabilities 	 4,490,576	 52,050	 -	 -	  -   
		  Provision for Investment 
		    Currency Market	 4,537,716	  -	  -	 -	  -   
		  Health insurance subsidy benefit 	 2,470,101	  -	  -	  - 	  -   
		  Special drawing rights - allocation	  -	  -	  -	  -	  191,633,310 

		    Total liabilities	 $	1,000,154,144	 $	 486,511	 $	 -	 $	 -	 $	 191,633,310
														            

	 Sensitivity of B$ compared to foreign currencies reflected in these financial statements is as follows:

		  Average Rate	 Year-end Spot Rate

		  2014	 2013	 2014	 2013

	 US$ 1	 1.0000	 1.0000	 1.0000		  1.0000
	 GBP 1	 1.6444	 1.5732	 1.5584		  1.6566
	 EUR 1	 1.3214	 1.3354	 1.2139		  1.3769
	 SDR 1	 1.5195	 1.5193	 1.4488		  1.5400
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)								      
	

	 (a)  Currency risk (Continued)									       

	 Special Drawing Rights (SDRs), the IMF’s unit of account, which is essentially a specified basket of four (4) major 
international currencies (i.e., the U. S. Dollar, Euro, Japanese Yen, and Pound Sterling). The weightage of each 
currency, which was consistent in both years, is as follows:								      
	

	 Currency			  Weight						    

	 US$	 41.9%					   

	 EURO	 37.4%					   

	 Japanese Yen	 9.4%					   

	 GBP	 11.3%					   

		  100.0%					   

										        

	 (b)  Interest rate risk									       

	 Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations 
in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may in-
crease as a result of such changes but may also decrease or create losses in the event that unexpected adverse 
movements arise. The level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken by the Bank is monitored 
frequently by the Investment Committee and the Monetary Policy Committee.

	 Certain of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities are exposed to interest rate risk. Marketable securities carry an 
average yield of 2.95% (2013: 2.90%); however, if these securities had a reduced average yield of 2.73% (2013: 
2.67%), derived from their varying yields at the lower end of the spectrum, income for the year and equity at year 
end would have been reduced by $1,149,895 (2013: $1,258,770). Had the yield been tilted towards the higher 
end of the spectrum, to 3.17% (2013: 3.13%), income for the year and equity at year end would have increased 
by $1,149,895 (2013: $1,258,770). 

	 In respect of all variable interest bearing instruments, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher, with all 
other variables remaining constant, the increase in income and equity for the year would amount to approximately 
$1,029,418 (2013: $467,083). If interest rates had decreased by 50 basis points, the decrease in equity and net 
operating results for the year would amount to approximately $1,029,418 (2013: $467,083).				  
		

		  December 31, 2014	 December 31, 2013
		  $	 $
	 Fixed Rate Instruments			 

Financial Assets	  977,425,212	  1,008,377,654 
	 Financial Liabilities	 -	  -   
				  

Variable Rate Instruments			 
Financial Assets	 386,149,340	  287,766,623 

	 Financial Liabilities	  180,265,829	  191,633,310
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 

	 (iii)  Liquidity risk									       

	 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank maybe unable to meet its payment obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities when they fall due, and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the failure 
to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments to lend. 					   
	

	 The Bank manages its liquidity risks through appropriate structuring of its investment portfolios to ensure that the 
maturity profiles of assets sufficiently match those of commitments. This is monitored and managed on a regular 
basis. In addition, the Bank’s investment portfolio comprises some highly liquid investment instruments.			 
							     

	 The Bank’s liquidity risk management process, as carried out within the Bank, includes:					  
				  

	 	 Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met, inclusive 
of replenishment of funds as they mature. The Bank maintains an active presence in global money markets to 
enable this to happen;								      

	 	 Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unfore-
seen interruption to cash flow;								      

	 	 Monitoring statement of financial position liquidity ratios against internal and statutory requirements; and 	

	 	 Managing the concentration and profile of debt and financial instrument maturities.					   
			

	 The following tables analyse financial assets and liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity rankings, based on the 
remaining period from the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the 
tables are the undiscounted cash flows. 
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

			   Up to	 1 to 3	 3 Months	 1 to	 Over		
			   1 Month 	 Months	 to 1 Year	 5 Years	 5 Years	 Total		
			   $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $		
										        
				  
	 As of December 31, 2014
	 Period of maturity
	 Financial Assets							     
		  Cash and deposits	 155,210,814 	 -	  -	 -	 -	 155,210,814
		  Marketable securities issued 
		   	 or guaranteed by 
			   foreign governments	 9,999,469	 19,990,143	 70,269,589 	 156,541,630	  288,112,507	 544,913,338 

		  International Monetary Fund:							     
			   Bahamas reserve tranche	 9,069,925	  - 	  -	  -	 -	  9,069,925
 			   Special drawing 
			     rights - holdings	  78,473,884	  -	  -	  -	  -	  78,473,884
 		  Bahamas Development 
			     Bank bonds	  -	  -	  -	  -	  4,055,697	  4,055,697
 		  Advances to Bahamas 
			   Government	 135,235,783	  -	  -	  -	  -	  135,235,783
 		  Bahamas Government 
			   Registered stocks	 -	 -	  3,577,455	  40,536,500	 272,423,300	 316,537,255
 		  Bahamas Government 
			   Treasury Bills	 -	  71,741,799	  47,915,615	 -	 -	  119,657,414
 		  Loans to Bahamas 
			   Development Bank	 -	 -	 -	 582,035	  3,625,000	  4,207,035
 		  Bridge Authority bonds	 -	 -	 -	  450,485	  21,900	  472,385
 		  Clifton Heritage 
			   Authority bonds	 -	 -	 -	 -	  638,434	 638,434
		  Currency inventory	  7,097,251	  -	  - 	  - 	  - 	  7,097,251 
		  Retirement benefit asset	  -	 -	 -	 -	  1,556,553	  1,556,553
		  Receivables and other assets	 16,756,010	 -	 -	 -	 -	  16,756,010 
		  Property, plant and equipment	 -	 -	 -	 -		  10,991,951	 10,991,951

			   Total financial assets	 411,843,136 	 91,731,942 	 121,762,659	 198,110,650	 581,425,342	 1,404,873,729
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

	 (iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

			   Up to	 1 to 3	 3 Months	 1 to	 Over		
			   1 Month 	 Months	 to 1 Year	 5 Years	 5 Years	 Total
			   $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $
													           

	 As of December 31, 2014												         
Period of maturity												          
Financial Liabilities											         
	

			   Notes in circulation	 354,148,708	  -	 -	 -	 -	 354,148,708
			   Coins in circulation	  21,301,243	 -	 -	 -	 -	 21,301,243 
			   Deposits by commercial 
			     banks	 607,745,338	 -	  -	 -	 -	  607,745,338
			   Deposits by Bahamas							     
			     Government and Bahamas 
			   Government agencies	 74,421,172	  -	 -	 -	 -	  74,421,172 
	   		  Deposits by 
			   international agencies	 255,443	 -	 - 	 -	 -	  255,443 
			   Accounts payable and 
			     other liabilities	 5,661,623	 -	 -	 -	 -	  5,661,623 
			   Provision for Investment 							     
			     Currency Market	 5,914,733 	 -	 -	 -	 -	  5,914,733 
			   Health insurance 
			     subsidy benefit	  - 	  -	  -	  -	  2,841,282	  2,841,282 
			   International Monetary Fund:							     
			     Special drawing
			     rights - allocation		  180,265,829 		   -   		   -   		   -   		   -   		  180,265,829 

			     Total financial liabilities	  1,249,714,089 	  -   	  -  	  -	  2,841,282	 1,252,555,371
		  Net liquidity gap,		
	   		  December 31, 2014	 $	(837,870,953)	 $	 91,731,942	 $	121,762,659	 $	198,110,650	 $	578,584,060	 $	152,318,358
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

	 (iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

													           

			   Up to	 1 to 3	 3 Months	 1 to	 Over		
			   1 Month 	 Months	 to 1 Year	 5 Years	 5 Years	 Total
			   $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $
	 As of December 31, 2013													           
	 Period of maturity													           
	 Financial Assets												          
	
		  Cash and deposits	 122,439,760	 -	 -	 -	 - 	 122,439,760 
		  Trading securities	 -	 4,517,248	  - 	  -  	  -	  4,517,248 
		  Marketable securities issued							     
			   or guaranteed by foreign 
			   governments	  10,069,535	  20,298,726	 58,071,857	 213,137,676	 244,869,706 	 546,447,500
		  International Monetary Fund:							     
			   Bahamas reserve tranche	  9,640,826	  - 	  -	  - 	  - 	  9,640,826 
			   Special drawing 
			      rights - holdings	 58,579,218	 -	  -	  -	 -	  58,579,218 
		  Bahamas Development 
			   Bank bonds	 -	 -	  -	 -	 4,055,697	 4,055,697 
		  Advances to Bahamas 
			   Government	 135,162,931	  -   	  -   	  - 	  - 	  135,162,931 
		  Bahamas Government 
			   Registered stocks	  -	  -	  663,059	  802,077	 222,044,405	 223,509,541 
		  Bahamas Government 
			   Treasury Bills	 -	  120,444,213	  66,141,733	  -	 -	  186,585,946
		  Loans to Bahamas 
			   Development Bank	  -   	  -   	  -   	  684,487	  3,927,027	  4,611,514 
		  Bridge Authority bonds	 -   	  -   	 513,920	 -	 469,813	  983,733 
		  Clifton Heritage Authority bonds	  -   	  -	 -	 -	 638,434	  638,434 
		  Currency inventory	 7,291,897	  -   	  -	  -   	 - 	  7,291,897 
		  Retirement benefit asset	  -	  -	  - 	  -	  3,924,102	  3,924,102 
		  Receivables and other assets	 11,812,662 	  -	  -	  -	 -	  11,812,662 
		  Property, plant and equipment	 -   	 - 	  -	 -	  12,114,128	  12,114,128 

	           Total financial assets	 354,996,829	 145,260,187	 125,390,569	 214,624,240	 492,043,312	 1,332,315,137
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28.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

	 (iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)

			   Up to	 1 to 3	 3 Months	 1 to	 Over		
			   1 Month 	 Months	 to 1 Year	 5 Years	 5 Years	 Total
			   $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $
													           

	 As of December 31, 2013													           
	 Period of maturity													           
	 Financial Liabilities												          
		  Notes in circulation	 332,695,121	 - 	 -	 -	 -	 332,695,121
		  Coins in circulation	 19,988,492 	  -	  -	  -  	  - 	  19,988,492 
		  Deposits by commercial 
			   banks	 572,209,100	 -	  -	  -	  -	  572,209,100
		  Deposits by Bahamas 
			   Government and Bahamas 
			   Government agencies	  63,763,038	  -	  -	  -	  -	  63,763,038
		  Deposits by international 
			   agencies	 434,461	  -	  -	  - 	  -	  434,461
		  Accounts payable 
			   and other liabilities	 4,542,626	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,542,626
		  Provision for Investment 							     
			   Currency Market	 4,537,716	 -	 -	 -	 -	  4,537,716 
		  Health insurance subsidy 
		    benefit	 -	  -	  - 	  	 - 	 2,470,101	 2,470,101
		  International Monetary Fund:
			   Special drawing 
			     rights -  allocation	  191,633,310	  -	 -	 -	 -	  191,633,310 

			       Total financial liabilities	 1,189,803,864	 -	 -	 -	 2,470,101	 1,192,273,965
	 Net liquidity gap,												          
		  December 31, 2013	 $	(834,807,035)	 $	145,260,187	 $	125,390,569	 $	214,624,240  $	 489,573,211	 $	140,041,172

	 (iv) Operational risk									       

	 Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls 
are ineffective, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to 
financial loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavours to manage these risks 
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective seg-
regation of duties, restricted access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment 
processes, which are monitored through the internal audit function.							     
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29.	 RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS 

	 Defined Contribution Plan									      

		  2014		  2013

	 Amount recognized as an expense (Note 21)	 $	 51,789 	 $	 - 

										        

	 Defined Benefit Plan											           	
			 

	 The movements in the contributory defined benefit obligation over the year are as follows:				  
					   

		  2014		  2013

	 Present value of obligation at start of year		   47,597,873 		  53,478,672
	 Interest cost		  2,316,473 		   2,620,466 
	 Current service cost		  2,158,615 		   2,301,762 
	 Past service cost - vested benefits		  -   		   (7,707,445)
	 Benefits paid		  (2,536,832)		   (2,138,693)
	 Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation		  763,000 		   (1,014,789)
	 Actuarial loss on obligation due to 					   

	 financial assumption changes		  1,669,166 		   57,900 

	 Present value of obligation at end of year	 $	 51,968,295 	 $	 47,597,873 

							     
Fair value of plan assets at start of year		  51,521,975 		   49,152,722 

	 Interest income		  2,558,814 		   2,452,851 
	 Contribution paid - by employer		  1,378,717 		   1,507,967 
	 Contribution paid - by employees		  473,119 		   439,337 
	 Benefits paid		  (2,536,832)		   (2,138,693)
	 Administrative cost		   (6,400)		   -   
	 Return on plan assets, excluding interest income		  135,455 		   107,791 

	 Fair value of plan assets at end of year	 $	 53,524,848 	 $	 51,521,975

									       

	 The amount recognized as an asset in the statement of financial position in respect of the Bank’s contributory 
defined retirement benefit plan is as follows:									      

		  2014		  2013

										        

	 Present value of funded obligations		  (51,968,295)	  	 (47,597,873)
	 Fair value of plan assets		  53,524,848	  	 51,521,975 

			   $	 1,556,553	  $	 3,924,102	
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29.	 RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS  (Continued)

	 Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)

	 Summary of plan investments, in accordance with IAS # 19:								      
	

		  2014		  2013

	 Cash		  16,850 		   217,837 
	 Interest receivable		  604,348 		   569,438 
	 Bahamas Government Registered Stocks		   52,284,900 		   50,321,100 
	 Other bonds		   330,100 		   326,100 
	 Shares		  300,000 		   100,000 
	 Accounts payable		  (11,350)		   (12,500)

	 Total	  $	 53,524,848 	 $	 51,521,975 
										        

	 The expense/(income) recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the Bank’s contributory 
defined retirement benefit plan is as follows:									      

		  2014		  2013

	 Current service cost		  1,685,496	  	 1,862,425 
	 Administrative cost		  6,400 		   -   
	 Net interest (income)/expense		  (242,341)		   167,615 
	 Past service cost - vested benefits		  -   		   	 (7,707,445)

			   $	 1,449,555	  $	 (5,677,405)
							     

Remeasurements recognized in OCI	 $	 2,296,711 	 $	 (1,064,680)

	 Movements in the net assets recorded in the statement of financial position are as follows:				  
					   
	 2014		  2013

	 Net (asset)/liability at beginning of year		  (3,924,102)		   4,325,950 
	 Net expense/(income) recognized in net income		  1,449,555 		   (5,677,405)
	 Employer contributions		  (1,378,717)		   (1,507,967)
	 Remeasurements recognized in OCI		  2,296,711 		   (1,064,680)

	 Net asset at end of year	 $	 (1,556,553)	 $	 (3,924,102)
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29.	 RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)					   
	

	 The Bank intends to contribute approximately 14.4% of members’ pay to the plan during 2015 (2014: actual 
14.4%).		  		
				  
Principal actuarial assumptions used at the statement of financial position date are as follows:			 
				  
	 2014	 2013

	 Discount rate		  5.00%		  5.00%
	 Expected rate of salary increase at age 18		  4.00%		  4.00%
	 Expected rate of salary increase at age 59		  4.00%		  4.00%
	 Cost of living adjustment for retirees		  1.25%		  1.25%
							     

The actual return on plan assets during the year was $2,694,269 (2013: $2,560,642). 				  
					   

	 Sensitivity & Other Results 					   
			 

	 The benefit obligation as at year-end is distributed as follows:					   
	 2014		  2013

	 Pensioners 		  12,845,577 		   12,349,988 
	 Vested actives		  36,871,007 		   32,985,328 
	 Unvested actives		  2,251,711 		   2,262,557 

			   $	 51,968,295 	 $	 47,597,873 
						    
	 Of the pensioner liability of $12,845,577 (2013: $12,349,988), $1,246,584 (2013: $1,221,916 ) relates to as-

sumed cost of living adjustments. 					   
			 

	 Of the liability for actives of $39,122,718 (2013: $35,247,885), $1,342,689 (2013: $1,211,035) relates to as-
sumed cost of living adjustments while $8,533,991 (2013: $7,211,374) relates to assumed future salary increases. 	
							     

	 The following table illustrates the changes or sensitivity of the benefit obligation as at December 31 for 1% chang-
es in discount rate and salary increases.								      

		  2014	 2013

		  1% Increase	 1% Decrease	 1% Increase	 1% Decrease

	 Discount rate 	 (7,670,397)	 9,817,303	 (7,178,296)	 9,210,901
	 Future salary increases 	 2,825,241	 (2,510,747)	 2,241,665	 (2,002,615)

						    
If all members lived one year longer than projected, the liability at year-end would be $52,654,232 (2013: 
$48,244,876).

						    
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 31 December 2014 is 16.6 years (2013: 16.8 
years).				  
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29.	 RETIREMENT PENSION BENEFIT (Continued)

	 Defined Benefit Plan (Continued)					   
			 

	 In the year 2013, the Bank adopted the revised IAS # 19, Employee Benefits and amended certain terms of the 
plan, as follows:					   
			 

	 Amendments to the Plan in 2013								      

	 1) The number of years over which salaries are averaged for pension calculations was increased from 3 to 5 years.
	
	 2) Lump sum pension rate was changed from a maximum of 50% to a minimum of 50%.

	 3) The annual Cost of Living Allowance (COLA) adjustment to pensions in payment was fixed at 1.25% from the 
previous provision of awarding actual inflation in the previous calendar year, up to a maximum of 5%.	

30.	 HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY BENEFIT FOR RETIREES								     
	

	 The movement in the health insurance subsidy for retirees over the year is as follows:				  
					   
	 2014		  2013

	 Present value of obligation at start of year		  2,470,101		   2,373,635 
	 Interest cost		  120,812 		   116,176 
	 Current service cost		  88,076 		   77,318 
	 Benefits paid		  (107,723)		   (100,233)
	 Actuarial loss on obligation		  270,016 		   3,205 

	 Present value of obligation at end of year	 $	 2,841,282 	 $	 2,470,101 
										        

	 Contributions paid by employer		  107,723 		   100,233 
	 Benefits paid		   (107,723)		   (100,233)

			   $	 - 	 $	 -   
										        

	 The expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in respect of the health insurance subsidy 
benefit for retirees is as follows:									       

		  2014		  2013

	 Current service cost		  88,076		  77,318
	 Net interest cost		  120,812 		   116,176 

			   $	 208,888 	 $	 193,494 
										        

	 Remeasurements recognized in OCI	 $	 270,016	 $	 3,205
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30.	 HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY BENEFIT FOR RETIREES (Continued)

	 Movements in the net liability recorded in the statement of financial position are as follows:

		  2014		  2013

	 Net liability at beginning of year		  2,470,101 		   2,373,635 
	 Net expense recognized in net income		  208,888 		   193,494 
	 Employer contributions		  (107,723)		   (100,233)
	 Remeasurements recognized in OCI		  270,016 		   3,205 

		  $	 2,841,282 	 $	 2,470,101

					     	
Principal actuarial assumptions used at the statement of financial position date are as follows:				  
					   
	 2014		  2013

	 Discount rate	 5.00%	 5.00%
	 Rate of Medical Subsidy Increases 	 0.00%	 0.00%
										        

	 Sensitivity & Other Results									       

										        

	 The benefit obligation as at year-end comprises:					   
	 2014		  2013

	 Pensioners		  1,297,536		  1,129,570
	 Actives		  1,543,746		  1,340,531

	 Total	 $	 2,841,282 	 $	 2,470,101 
										        

	 The following table illustrates the changes or sensitivity of the benefit obligation as at December 31 for 1% change 
in discount rate.									       

		  2014		  2013		

		  1% Increase 	 1% Decrease	 1% Increase	 1% Decrease 

	 Discount rate	 (340,931)	  423,951 	 (302,613)	  377,720 

	

	 If all members lived one year longer than projected, the liability would be $2,915,663 (2013: $2,538,692).		
							     

	 The weighted average duration of the health insurance subsidy benefit obligation at 31 December 2014 is 13.3 
years (2013: 14.1 years).									       






